CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF NEW YORK

----- X

TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

Of the

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

----- X

November 18, 2021 Start: 10:11 a.m. Recess: 2:11 p.m.

HELD AT: Remote Hearing (virtual room 4)

B E F O R E: Francisco Moya CHAIRPERSON

COUNCIL MEMBERS:
Carlina Rivera
Diana Ayala
Barry Grodenchik
Stephen T. Levin
Antonio Reynoso
Joseph C. Borelli

A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

Richard Lobel, Counsel for Applicant Sheldon Lobel PC

Fayanne Betan Sheldon Lobel PC

Edward Perez, Senior Monitoring Director Big Apple Group

Dylan Sandler, Senior Planner Department of City Planning

Nicholas Moore
Department of City Planning

Kristina Hinckson New York State Society of Medical Massage Therapists

Louis Mazzella New York State Society of Medical Massage Therapists

Katie Muehlenkamp, Owner The Bar Method

Barry Dinerstein, Deputy Director for Housing and Economic Development Department of City Planning

Jesse Hirakawa, Urban Designer and City Planner Department of City Planning Jed Walentas
Two Trees Management Company

Bonnie Campbell Two Trees Management Company

David Kanofsky

David Lombino
Two Trees Management Company

Keith Berger, New York City Resident

Cory Kantin, New York City Resident

Lucy Walton, New York City Resident

Ward Dennis, New York City Resident

Richard Mazar, New York City Resident

Katie Denny Horowitz, Executive Director North Brooklyn Alliance

Joe Chan, Senior Vice President for Real Estate and Property Management YMCA of Greater New York

Matt Emmi, New York City Resident

Tami Stronach, New York City Resident

Adam Ganser, Executive Director New Yorkers for Parks

Lori Raphael, Senior Vice President

Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce

Kendall Charter, Executive Director Greenpoint YMCA

Renzo Ramirez, member 32 BJ

Jose Leon St. Nick's Alliance

Rashid Littlejohn, New York City Resident

Ruben Colon Carpenter's Union

Scott Baker Urban Cyclists

Paul Samulski, President North Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce

Daniella Castillo El Puente

Marcel Negret, Senior Planner Regional Plan Association

Michael Kawochka Land Use Committee Community Board One

Millie Khemiri, Licensed Social Worker Administration of Children Services

Luke Loreti, New York City Resident

Ramon Peguero, President and CEO Committee for Hispanic Children and Families

Susan Albrecht, New York City Resident

Neil Sheehan, Chairperson and Cofounder North Brooklyn Angels

Ray Acosta, New York City Resident

William Thomas, Executive Director Open New York

Eliza Grace Madrone, Communication Manager Brooklyn Greenway Initiative

Juana Rodriguez, New York City Resident

Peter Malinowski Billion Oyster Project

Luke Gronchowski, New York City Resident

Paul Pullo, Chair Greenpoint YMCA

Allyson Stone, New York City Resident

Zane Shelby, New York City Resident

Arelis Pujols, New York City Resident

Marnie Marjorelle, New York City Resident

Rose Angel Perez, New York City Resident
Harrison Grinnan, New York City Resident
Melissa Cosme, New York City Resident
Sunny Ng, New York City Resident
Catherina Gioino, Community Partnership
Ooni

Shaurav Datta, New York City Resident

Sasha Aiken, New York City Resident

Alex Vallejo, New York City Resident

Cristiano Rossi, New York City Resident

Julia Foster, New York City Resident

Maria Khimulya, New York City Resident

Spencer Heckwolf, New York City Resident

Council member Barry G. We're going to continue to

technical note, for the benefit of the viewing

public, if you need an accessible version of any of

24

course of this meeting for various technical reasons

and we ask that you please be patient as we work

2.3

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 11
through these issues. Chair Moya will now continue

with today's agenda items.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you, Arthur. I now open the public hearing on LU numbers 925 and 926 for the 103-16 Van Wyck Expressway rezoning requesting a zoning map and zoning text amendment relating to property in Council member Adams' district in Queens. For anyone wishing to testify on this item, if you have not already done so, you must register online and you made to that now by visiting the Council's away site, once again, at Council.NYC.gov/land use. Counsel, if you can, please call the first panel for this item.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: The applicant panel for this item will include Richard Lobel. Also available for question and answer will be Fayanne Betan.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Great. And if you could please administer the affirmation.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Panelists, would you please raise your right hands? Do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth in your testimony before this

2.2

2.3

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2 subcommittee and in answer to all Council member

3 questions?

2.2

2.3

RICHARD LOBEL: I do.

FAYANNE BETAN: Yes. I do.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you. You may begin, Richard.

RICHARD LOBEL: Thank you, Chair Moya.

Good morning, Chair, Council members. Again, Richard Lobel from Sheldon Lobel PC. I am joined by Fayanne and we are here to present 103 16 Van Wyck Expressway rezoning. If the presentation could be loaded? So, this rezoning is for 10,000 square-foot lot and the second page, if you can forward, it is a project summary. This is a very straightforward rezoning.

? Thank you. So, the project summary contains the two actions sought. The first is, of course, a zoning map amendment to rezone 103-16 Van Wick Expressway. This rezoning would result in a proposed four story plus cellar mixed use building with ground floor commercial use and roughly 18 dwelling units on three floors above. There would, additionally, be five lots around the corner on Liberty Avenue included in the rezoning, however,

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

this is merely to correct the rezoning of the rear portions of those lots and there is no intended redevelopment based upon that. Second, of course, is the zoning text amendment which, as is the case with such rezonings would result in mapping of mandatory inclusionary housing currently designated as either option one or option two resulting in 5 to 6 affordable units of the 18 units proposed. Next slide. So, you can see from the zoning map on the next slide that we currently are in an R3A district. It's notable that this is around the corner from and R6B C2-3 district which would be wrapped around in order to cover the property. This is one of the reasons it is deemed to be a very appropriate rezoning. In addition, we are on the Van Wyck Expressway service road which operates as an extra wide street in front of us. So, we really are quite appropriate for this density. The next slide, if you can forward it, demonstrates with a little bit more specificity the exact area of the rezoning as designated. So, you can see the 10,000 square-foot lot with frontage on the side street. This would take a relatively underutilized property and allow for the provision of not only affordable units, but

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

also for ground floor commercial to enliven this area. Next slide. So, this is a land use map. land use map demonstrates, as you would expect along Liberty Avenue, a commercial corridor that there is, you know, many uses that are consistent with the C2-3 rezoning which is also proposed for the site. Again, you can see that this would allow for the R6B to bend around from Liberty Avenue. This would be considered a very contextual rezoning, not only by the choice of district which would limit the height of this building to four stories, but also by allowing for the zoning should really be extended beyond the existing boundaries. Next slide. So, the next few slides -- and you can feel free to page through them quickly, are photographs which demonstrate the area, demonstrates the building typology and, again, in front of us is a zoning change map which, as you can see, merely tanks the existing R6B district and Ben's and around Van Wyck Expressway service road to cover the property. The resulting development -- next slide-- would include the building that you see on the plans in front of you with the site plan here. It would include ground floor commercial use with residential use above. Next slide. The ground floor

Grodenchik.

Grodenchik, I resent some notes. We will just wait

RICHARD LOBEL: Sure. Thank you,
Council member Grodenchik. So, I think, first of
all, the fact that we are adjacent to parcels

2.3

24

fronting on Liberty Avenue was a factor in the determination to go forward with city planning on allowing for the commercial overlay. So, I think that the -- this is kind of a challenging block, which is somewhat underdeveloped and also blighted. To the extent that there is this kind of connection to Liberty Avenue to allow for some commercial use to enter the Expressway service road, it seems to be a desirable thing. You know, the Expressway here and development along the Expressway is somewhat limited given the fact that you are facing what amounts to be this extra wide and very active roadway. So, the applicant has no definitive tenants yet. They have had some discussions. The intention would be for local retail and professional offices and, while it is not a tremendous amount of lot area square footage devoted to that use, it would be seen as something that is complementary for those existing uses on Liberty. So, you know, we went forward with City Planning on that portion of the application. We are happy to do it. We think it could kind of create a little bit of interest and some needed development in that immediate area.

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 19
2	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Mr. Chair, you are
3	on mute.
4	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: All right.
5	Thank you for that. And I apologize again. I've
6	been juggling, but you've got my full attention now.
7	So, I don't have any other questions for the
8	applicant and I thank you for your patience this
9	morning. So, counsel, I think we can move on.
10	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: All right. Yes,
11	Mr. Chair. You may dismiss the applicant panel and
12	then we can turn to public testimony.
13	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. This
14	applicant panel is dismissed and I thank you for your
15	time this morning.
16	RICHARD LOBEL: Thank you, Chair
17	Grodenchik.
18	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I understand
19	that Councilman Levin would like to speak.
20	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Mr. Chair, I
21	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I don't know
22	if he is here
23	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair, I think
24	the

2 CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Oh. Just that he's here. Okay. I appreciate that. 3 Yes. I'm

sorry about that.

1

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: All right. With that, we do have one member of the public who is signed up to speak and we will now hear from that first panel for this item. The first speaker-first and only speaker on this panel will be Edward Perez.

EDWARD PEREZ: Good morning, Chairman and committee members and those tuning in. Thank you for the opportunity to speak this morning. My name is Edward Perez. I am the senior monitoring director at the Big Apple Group. We specialize in civil engineering solutions, one of them being construction monitoring and protecting adjacent structures during construction. I do want to come in favor of this project, but with special considerations for the protection of the adjacent structures around that site. For example, those along 135th Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103 18 Van Wick right next-door. project does involve the excavation of roughly 75,000 feet of cubic material. Cubic feet of material. The proposed construction will result in inground

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

me is actually one of our project sites that we just wrapped up. It's 77 Commercial Street in Greenpoint.

4 | The device over my--

1

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

shoulder is the total EDWARD PEREZ: station that shoots the readings. The building to the left is all the buildings that we're protecting about that site and throughout the project life of excavation. You know, it's not to scare the neighbors. It's more so people know that there are solutions out there to protect adjacent structures. Anybody afraid of vibrations or damage to their property, the contractors are able to go ahead and hire people like us. Anyone interested in having the Big Up GROUP conducting monitoring for the protection of adjacent structures or other civil engineering solutions such as geotechnical investigations or special inspections, I can be reached at 718-767-2900 extension 421. You can also read more about our services at vibration monitoring.com. Thank you for your time. That is it.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Thank you for your testimony and thank you for the information you presented this morning. If any other Council members

now closed and the items are laid over. I am now

going to open the public hearing on land use number

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

2 advanced for you. As a reminder, for anyone who

3 requires an accessible version of this presentation,

4 please send an email request to land use

5 | testimony@Council.NYC.gov. For the record, as you

6 begin your testimony, I will just ask you to please

7 raise state your names. And, with that, Mr. Sandler

8 and Mr. Moore, you may begin.

1

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

DYLAN SANDLER: Thank you. morning, Council members. Can you please load the slide presentation? My name is Dylan Sandler. a senior planner at the Department of City Planning. And I will give a brief overview of the health and fitness text amendment and then we would be happy to answer any questions. Next slide, please? proposal is intended to cut red tape for healthrelated businesses. So, this includes large gyms, smaller exercise studios, spas, and massage therapy. Next slide, please? Currently, there is a special permit from the Board of Standards and Appeals that is required to open these businesses almost everywhere in New York City. There has been a lot of growth and change in the industry since this special permit was created in the 1970s and the department believes that the permit is no longer serving its

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

intended purpose, but it is creating significant regulatory barriers for a wide range of very legitimate small businesses that are trying to operate a New York City. Next slide, please. average, the special permit takes about six months to be granted and it costs businesses in the range of \$30-\$50,000 to go through this process. In addition, this permit is not applicable in most C1 districts meaning that gyms, spas, and massage therapy are not allowed in locations where we allow other retail and commercial uses. And, finally, at a time when vacancy rates are quite high along some retail streets, we want to ensure that our zoning regulations are sufficiently flexible to allow businesses to occupy the space. Next slide. Moving into the details of the proposal, the Department of City Planning is proposing to remove the BSA special permit for all gyms, spas, and licensed massage therapy. These are currently referred to in the zoning resolution as physical culture or health establishments and we would also be removing that term from the zoning. Gyms and spas would be considered commercial uses that would be allowed as of right. Smaller gyms and spas, so those that are

Finally, the proposal also includes additional

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

performance standards for noise and vibration that can occur within gyms. A subset of gyms, those that include significant weight or exercise machinery will need to have an acoustical engineer certify with the Department of Buildings that the facility is designed to meet these performance standards before they receive a certificate of occupancy. These provisions would apply mixed use buildings and commercial and MX districts. Lower intensity facilities such as yoga, you might live, and spas will not need to demonstrate compliance with these additional noise and vibration performance standards, but will still be subject to the New York City noise code. Next slide, please. Thank you very much for your time. I would be very happy to respond to any questions.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. I think you very, very much for that presentation. For the record, this is something in my opinion that is long overdue, but, of course, we do have a few questions. Citywide, there are many areas with the illegal massage establishments and how will we make sure that this text amendment doesn't exacerbate this problem?

DYLAN SANDLER: Thank you for that question. So, under the current framework, the way

continues to be prohibited as a primary or accessory

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

2.2

2.3

intended purpose.

use in a business anywhere in New York City and so we have worked very closely with the Mayors Office of Special Enforcement in the Office to End Gender Based Violence to make sure that these rules still provide every pathway for enforcement against today's kinds of businesses, but what it does to ways make sure that the legitimate massage therapists and other health and fitness facilities are not overly burdened by special permit that is no longer serving its

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: All right.

Thank you for that answer. The text amendment describes high intensity uses. How exactly are they defined?

DYLAN SANDLER: Sure. They are defined as facilities that include significant weights or exercise machinery. So, this would include things like, you know, traditional large gyms like Blink and Planet Fitness and Equinox. It would also include things like CrossFit that involves heavyweights. And also things that involve a lot of aerobic equipment that are operating in unison. So, things like indoor cycling or indoor facilities with a lot of indoor treadmills where there is the potential for

2.2

2.3

significant vibration. There is some discretion from the Department of Buildings to determine what falls into the category of high intensity. And this is really acknowledging that the industry changes over time and if we were to, say, you know, bar classes are low intensity or cross fit is high intensity, in two years, there would be a new kind of exercise that we wouldn't have conceived of today. So we tried to sort of basic on the equipment used, the also, you know, given the Department of Buildings some discretion to determine what falls into that category.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I'm old enough to remember when Jacqueline was the only game in town and he would into stuff on TV with chairs and tables and all that kind of stuff. And so, we certainly have over my and all lifetime and even before we have involved tremendously in this city. We now have so many also martial arts facilities in addition to the gyms and I am hopeful that this text amendment will solve a lot of the issues that communities have been grappling with. And speaking of communities, community boards have raised— several of them, of course, have raised issues regarding this text

amendment and I was just wondering how we managed to
deal with those issues specifically noise and I think
you mentioned vibration already, but just is that

5 within the purview of this text amendment to deal

6 | with? Especially noise?

1

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

DYLAN SANDLER: Yeah. So, we think the proposal has a very thoughtful way of dealing with noise and vibration. You are correct that this was an issue raised by several community boards. So, all of these businesses, regardless of the size and the activity would be subject to the New York City noise code which can address both concerns about noise use within a building but also for adjacent buildings. And then we go beyond that by, you know, we worked with both the Board of Standards and Appeals and we also put together a committee of acoustical engineers who have a lot of experience working with gyms in New York City and in the region to come up with a standard that links to national codes and standards to deal with noise and vibration. So, for those high intensity uses, they would, basically, have to hire an acoustical engineer to make sure that the spaces designed adequately based on the activity and based on the building that they are in and the adjacent

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Yeah. Thank you. No. It is especially important in many parts of this anywhere of these operations go on 24 seven, so that is critical. Counsel, I don't have any more questions. Any members of the panel? Any of my colleagues have questions?

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Going to check to see if there are any members with questions, Mr.

Chair. I see no members with questions for this panel.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. There being no further questions, the applicant panel is excused. I want to thank them for their succinct and excellent testimony today. Counsel, any members--

2.2

2.3

2 COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Mr. Chair, may I
3 just quickly-- this is Council member Levin.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Yes. Of course. Council member Levin is recognized. And his kids.

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: I just want to express my support for this text change and look forward to be able to vote on this before the end-of-the-year.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I agree with you, Council member Levin and I am looking forward to voting on it, as well. It will cut out a lot of paperwork in the future.

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: I have heard from businesses in my district that this is a major impediment. So, looking forward to it.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: And I was just reminiscing off-line with a member of the staff about the rezoning in my district that was, basically, based on this issue and hopefully it will save a lot of time and money for people looking to do business in this area of New York. With that, there being no further questions, again, the panel is excused.

Counsel, are there any members of the public who wish

2.2

2.3

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We are going to check on that right now, Mr. Chair. Thank you. You could dismiss-- I'm sorry if I missed it, but you could dismiss the applicant panel.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: They are dismissed.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you. Please standby.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Thank you.

do have a number of public witnesses who have signed up to speak. For members of the public here to testify, please note, again, that you may be called in panels of more than one person. If you are a member of the public signed up to testify on the health and fitness zoning text amendment proposal, please stand by when you hear your name being called and prepare to speak when the Chair says that you may begin. Please also note that once all panelists in your group have completed their testimony, you will be removed from the meeting as a group and the next group of speakers will be introduced. Once removed,

Thank you.

former Governor Rockefeller, NYSSMMT is responsible

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

for massage therapy being regulated as a licensed healthcare profession under title eight with other healthcare professionals. Other NYSSMMT accomplishes having the name changed from lettuces to massage therapist with title protection and, in the year 2022, the derogatory phrase massage parlor is now abolished from the White House nix code system as it lands-- excuse me. As a lens to misrepresent the market confusion that we are having this moment today. In New York State, one must attain an Associates degree, pass the state board exam to be licensed and then registered. Registration must be renewed every three years upon the proof of completion of 36 continuing education credits. public can verify massage therapist license and the registration at NYSED, N Y S E D website. healthcare licensees, massage therapists volunteered at September 11 Ground Zero as second responders to the first responders rescue and recovery efforts. There are over 3700 licensees and five massage therapy schools in the five boroughs. We are the first line of enforcement to protect our profession. If there is any stakeholder that has the most concern about enforcement, it is us. The massage therapy

2 community, however, the special permit is a burden to 3 our profession nor has--

1

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: If you can wrap up, Mr. Mazzella, you can continue just a little while.

LOUIS MAZZELLA: I would appreciate that. Rejecting the proposal would continue system that is not working and seeing the opportunity to address the quidance from our association. Rejecting this proposal is saying no to massage therapy for pregnancy, cancer patients, veterans with PTSD, cardiac patient, burn victims, and mental health. During the pandemic, rejecting this proposal is saying no to medical massage and manual lymphatic drainage therapists who are struggling to meet the high demand against COVID 19. With this passage--But the passage of the proposal, massage therapist will be able to contribute to the city's economic recovery while providing our best care for each New Yorker in mind, body, and spirit. You so much for the extension of time.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I thank you for your testimony this morning. We are still in

working out, I went to through the Board of Standard

totally normal service to offer clients-

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

2 KATIE MUHLENKAMP: Can I just do like 10 more seconds?

4 CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Yes. Please

5 | continue. Please continue.

1

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

KATIE MUHLENKAMP: Yeah. I just have a couple more sentences. I just want to say that I think it is very strange and unfair to make businesses like mine go through this process. seems very outdated, as mentioned, and expensive and I also find that it is discriminatory towards us as businesses and also compared to other places outside of New York City. I am part of a franchise network and nobody that I now out of the other hundred studio owners has heard of anything even remotely similar to this process. So, it seems discriminatory to me. So, I would just say, in closing, especially at a time like this, as mentioned, when businesses like mine are very reluctant to open in this market and even if we didn't experience the pandemic, I think that this amendment is very much needed to encourage the success of small and larger fitness studios. Thank you very much for your time.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I think you for your testimony and for providing a compelling

2 example of what business owners or would be business

3 owners have gone through. To be guite honest, this

4 is something that I've thought necessary, I think,

5 pretty much since I've been in government and I'm

6 joined government in late 87. So, we have finally,

7 | hopefully we will move forward with this amendment

8 and we will make it much easier and much more

9 sensible to do business, the sort of business, in the

10 city of New York. I thank you. Any of my colleagues

11 have any questions for Ms. Muhlenkamp?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: No, Mr. Chair. I see no members with questions.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. Being that there are no questions, ideas Ms. this panel and I asked the Council if there are any other persons wishing to testify at this time.

again, we will check to see if there are any members of the public and, if there are members of the public speaking to testify on the health and fitness zoning text amendment, we ask that you please use the raise hand button now. And, Mr. Chair, the meeting will once again briefly stand at ease while we check.

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

1 SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 45 2 CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Thank you, 3 counsel. 4 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair Grodenchik, I see no other members of the public who wish to 5 testify on this item. 6 7 CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Thank you, counsel. There being no other members of the public 8 who wish to testify on land use number 923 for the health and fitness zoning text amendment, I am now 10 11 closing the public hearing and the item is laid over. 12 I am now opening the public hearing on land use 13 number 924 for the citywide FRESH expansion text 14 amendment proposal also by the Department of City 15 Planning. I will remind the viewing public that for 16 any one wishing to testify on this item, if you have 17 not already done so, you must register online and you 18 may do that now by visiting the Council's website 19 Council.NYC.gov/land use. Counsel, if you would 20 please call the first panel for this item. 21 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: The applicant panel for this item will include Jesse Hirakawa and Barry 2.2 2.3 Dinerstein, both from the Department of City

24

Planning.

2 CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. And 3 counsel, if you could please administer the

4 affirmation.

1

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Panelists, if you would please raise your right hands. Do you affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth in your testimony before this subcommittee and in answer to all Council member questions?

BARRY DINERSTEIN: I do.

JESSE HIRAKAWA: I do.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Thank you,

15 slideshow, please say so and it will be displayed on

counsel and when you are ready to present your

16 screen by our staff slides will be advanced when you

17 say next. Once again, anyone who requires-- excuse

18 me-- an accessible version of this presentation may

19 send an email request to land use

20 | testimony@Council.NYC.gov. Now, Mr. Hirakawa and Dr.

21 Dinerstein, you may begin and I will remind you, just

22 as you begin speaking, to please state your name for

23 the record.

JESSE HIRAKAWA: Thank you.

areas of the city and to increase accessibility to

fresh foods. FRESH has two components: discretionary

tax incentive program managed by EDC which is in the

dark green and gray areas he can see on the map which

provides tax breaks for supermarket operators and

developers seeking to build or renovate new retail

23 taxes, mortgage record taxes, etc. Zoning incentives

spaces such as building taxes, land taxes, sales

under the Department of City Planning is a

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

24

25

certification process by the Chair of City Planning

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

stores, household car ownership, families with children living in poverty, and also the trade area of grocery stores. Putting those together created areas of high need which you can see in the darker gray areas to the lower need which is the lighter areas for access to fresh grocery stores. All New Yorkers deserve to live within a comfortable walking distance from a grocery store and have choices about where they shop. Next slide. The proposed expansion and need of the FRESH program dictate encourages development and retention of accessible stores, provide more affordable options that can be available due to increased competition, and lastly, power consumers with more options, convenience, and access. Next slide. The proposed text amendment would update the existing program under the zoning resolution, section 63 - 00, and includes some of the following. An expansion of the FRESH hundred days, a mechanism to stall saturation supermarkets in the areas, modifications to glazing requirements, windows, and also modify the parking relief. Lastly, there are some minor zoning text cleanups. Next slide. Based on our updated analysis of the supermarket needs index and land use policy goals, the department if

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 50
2	proposing an expansion of the program in the Bronx,
3	Queens, Brooklyn, and Staten Island. Expansion
4	boundaries are all vetted by Borough staff and city
5	Council land use staff and influenced by areas of
6	high need in the supermarket needs index. The
7	expansions are showed in the hatch - areas. 19
8	community districts already exist in FRESH and 11
9	more will be added. Although the use boundaries are
10	drawn widely around community District boundaries,
11	FRESH is applicable where there is commercial zoning,
12	as well as M1 districts typically were grocery
13	stores are already allowed as of right for zoning.
14	So, where FRESH applies is actually little bit
15	smaller than overall. Next slide. This concludes my
16	presentation. Barry Dinerstein and myself are
17	available for any questions. Sorry. I think you're
18	muted, Chair.
19	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: I certainly
20	was. That was a sticky button there. I am going to
21	ask we are going to have a quick procedural
22	announcement right now. Counsel?
23	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Sorry. I just want

to confirm with you that it was okay that the Special

the program is really to serve areas that are low

going to take a second, quick moment to just confirm.

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 53
2	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. Thank
3	you.
4	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: You can dismiss
5	this panel we are checking.
6	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Your checking
7	for the public, then, for your dismissing?
8	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Correct.
9	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: This panel is
10	dismissed. Okay. I'm going to dismiss this panel
11	because none of my colleagues have questions. And,
12	counsel, are there any members of the public?
13	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Now, Mr. Chair. I
14	see no members of the public who wish to testify on
15	this item.
16	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. That
17	being the case, we're going to take a positive this
18	hearing for the time being.
19	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Mr. Chair, if you
20	would refer to page 25.
21	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay.
22	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: You could close
23	this hearing before we pause. Excuse me. Close on
24	layover.

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 54
2	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Okay. Being
3	that there are no more witnesses, this hearing is now
4	closed and it is laid over.
5	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you. And,
6	Mr. Chair, with that, we are going to briefly stand
7	the subcommittee at ease for a moment while we
8	organize for the next hearing.
9	CHAIRPERSON GRODENCHIK: Thank you,
10	counsel.
11	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Good morning, everybody
12	viewing the livestream. We are currently on a brief
13	pause while we figure out some back end issues. We
14	appreciate your patience. Thank you.
15	[background comments]
16	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Okay. We're going to
17	get started in a few. We're going to start with our
18	vote first and then we will go into the next hearing
19	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you. Mr.
20	Chair, sergeants, we are officially now going to come
21	back and Chair Moya will continue with today's
22	agenda.
23	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Yeah. I'm just waiting
24	for There we go. Are we ready to go, Arthur?

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL:

1

3

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

Sergeants, we're

now going to continue with the agenda. Chair Moya

4 | will be taking it up now with the votes.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Great. Thank you so Thank you, everyone, for your patience. will vote today to approve with modifications reconsidered LU number 911 for the Citywide Hotel Special Permit text amendment. The proposal seeks a zoning text amendment to establish a citywide special permit relating to the transient hotel use. Our modification will be to add flexibility to certain vesting provisions as they relate to the site in the theater subdistrict of the special Midtown district. We will also vote to approve reconsidered LU number 916, 917 for the 506 Third Avenue rezoning relating to property in Council member Lander's district in Brooklyn. The proposal seeks a zoning map amendment to read zoning existing M2-1 district to a C4-4A district and a related zoning text amendment to establish an MIH program area utilizing options one and two. Our modifications will be to strike the MIH option two while retaining option one. Council member Lander is in support of the proposal as modified and we will also vote to approve with

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

Levin?

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 57
2	COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Aye.
3	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council member
4	Reynoso?
5	COUNCIL MEMBER REYNOSO: Aye.
6	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council member
7	Ayala?
8	COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: I vote aye.
9	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council member
10	Rivera?
11	COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.
12	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council member
13	Borelli?
14	COUNCIL MEMBER BORELLI: I vote aye.
15	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Council member
16	Grodenchik?
17	COUNCIL MEMBER GRODENCHIK: Aye.
18	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Okay. Mr. Chair,
19	the items are adopted by a vote of seven in the
20	affirmative, zero in the negative, and no abstentions
21	and are referred to the full land use committee.
22	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Great. Thank you very
23	much. Into just wanted to thank the opportunity to
24	thank Barry G for stepping in and taking care of
25	business while I was gone. Thank you again, Barry,

COMMITTEE COUNSEL:

Thank you.

2 CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you very much.

3 You may begin whenever you're ready.

1

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

JED WALENTAS: Bonnie, do you want me to start?

BONNIE CAMPBELL: Yeah. Go ahead, Jed.

JED WALENTAS: Good evening or, I guess, good morning, everyone. I'm actually calling in from Uganda. I'm doing some work with David [inaudible 01:32:50] at a refugee camp here. It's a pleasure to be here with everyone, so I can't joined by video. I just want to thank the Council for this opportunity and Steve Levin, in particular. We have had a great experience working with him in Brooklyn and around the Domino project in particular and look forward to concluding this process. We bought this site three or four years ago really within I towards building another amazing park. We assembled what I think is a world-class team to do that, not just the park, but the buildings. But the focus is to make a park that will change the model for resiliency and how New Yorkers interact with the water and the river forever, or at least for the next several decades. I'm building Domino Park and then having run it for the last three years has been probably the greatest

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

professional experience of my life and I think I speak for everyone in our office and our professional teams, as well. So, these super long. I'm sure my connection is weird, but I wanted to thank everyone for this opportunity. We take this project and all of our work extremely seriously. We're very proud of what you're about to see and what we're about to present. We recognize that with any process like this, there's an expectation that there's tremendous public good involved and we think we've met and exceeded those expectations and we look forward to working with Councilman Levin and his staff and the rest of the Council and Council leadership over the next couple weeks to get this over the finish line. So, thank you very much. I'm extremely grateful for this opportunity and, with that, I'll turn it over to Bonnie and the rest of the team. Thank you.

BONNIE CAMPBELL: Thanks, Jed. If you could screenshare the deck, that would be great, please. Great. Thank you. And thank you, Council members, for giving us this opportunity. As Jed mentioned, when we bought this site a few years ago, we were very much motivated by a real personal and professional ambition to build on the success we have

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

had in redeveloping the Domino sugar site and I know I speak for our entire team when I say, as Jed said, when opening Domino park has been, bar none, the most inspiring and humbling milestone in our collective careers. The sense of community, diversity, and energy there that's evolved over the past three years has been extremely moving for all of us and equally rewarding has been to see families in the neighborhood who have been there-- some of which have been there over a generation and some of which have relatives that actually worked at the Domino sugar factory and move into Domino's first low income units as we bring the buildings to market. So, next slide, please. So, we really pursued Forever Burying with the objective of building on the success in creating a unique pilot project for New York City, one that takes cues and best practices from other global cities around the world and from resiliency experts. And, as Jed said, the project seeks to fundamentally change the way we approach development along the rivers and and in our city and a way that the community can actually engage New York's ecosystem and sustainability and environmental justice are really the underpinnings of every aspect

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

jobs at Domino. So we are excited to build on that success. Next slide. So, now I will just quickly take you through the master plan and kind of how we arrived at this development. As you can see, this site is really a missing link in what is evolving into a wonderful waterfront open space, so we are excited to kind of be able to bring the north and south waterfront open space together. Next slide, please. And as I mentioned, what really gave us an opportunity that is different from something like Domino to the south are the existing piers and caissons that are in the canopies River have allowed us to work with the Army Corps and with DAC to hang what are called breakwaters off into the river in a way that will actually slow the wave energy and storm surge energy to create a softer, more resilient edge that can withstand future storms and also created an opportunity for water recreation. Next slide, please. So, again, the kind of four goals here that we wanted to create this continuous waterfront by connecting to the north and south to burying the city into the water and give New Yorkers a really unique experience. Create this more resilient soften shoreline and, you know, and aggregate, have a

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

spectacular new waterfront Park. Next slide, please. So, here you can see, you know, what were amazingly escape architect -- this is James Horner field operations has been able to fit into this 3 acre There is a tremendous amount of kind of egocentric recreation and passive and active recreation and a waterfront be and a tidal wetlands and we have been able to reuse those caissons that are out in the water for very unique system of pathways that you can really get out and experience at the river. Next slide, please. This crosssection kind of shows you how it works from an engineering and performance standpoint. You can see the cross-section of the breakwater which, again, we have done all that is wave modeling to understand, you know, how it can create a calm area adjacent to the park and it reduces the wave energy by upwards of 70percent. And this is something that can adapt with sea level rise. It can actually move up over time. It's a pretty cool design. And then, it also allows us to put all of these ecological installations in the river in the way that they will stay and not get washed out were scoured. So, there is an opportunity for a real tidal wetland and oyster reefs and all of

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

that kind of stuff. Next slide, please. And now, he is just a series of renderings that kind of give you a sense of what that space looks and feels like once it is constructed. You can see the beach here, the rain walkway which is a perforated metal walkway which, you know, is quite wide and expansive. Nature play area and outdoor title classroom. We have been partnering with the Billion Oyster Project and Brooklyn Boatworks to do number of youth programming that focus on river ecology. Next slide, please. So, now turning to the building that things. thought through the typical building massing approach for the site, we weren't satisfied with the outcome. It is kind of what you see to the north and south of here. A 40 story tower on a base. I shoreline connection, but no real impactful public space and the hardened edge actually exacerbates the wave energy and upland flooding. Next slide, please. we said, what if we actually had same density, but we compressed the density into a much smaller footprint trading off height for open space and facilitating a design that would allow and enable the resiliency measures that I just described. And it turns out this trade-off between, you know, right and open

you can see this is looking down North Third Street

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

next to the Boston Nichols building where the YMCA will be on the second and third floor. Next slide, please. And this is the gateway to the park. We are metropolitan wages a major artery that runs all the way from Jamaica Queens to the East River and really opened up. And it's been closed off for decades, nearly 100 years and here we have this great, you know, 80 foot wide entrance to this open space and now you can really see that arcade and where that kind of building comes together with the park and a very open way. Next slide, please. And this is a list of the proposed ULURP actions that we are seeking and while the project seems, you know, somewhat unconventional, the tools to make it happen already exist in the zoning resolutions, so we are excited to be able to put this all together. We have David Karnofsky here on the panel to answer any specific questions committee members have about these proposed actions. Next slide. And, with that, I will leave it on this slide. This is, again, just kind of a recap of what the project includes an terms of community benefits. As Jed said, we are just super excited to make this reality and work with the local Council member and making sure that it meets

2.2

2.3

2 the community needs. And, with that, I will turn it
3 over to questions.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you so much.

Just a few questions before I turn it over to Council member Levin. The current rezoning here is an M3-1 which hasn't been changed since 1961. Why are these sites left out of the 2005 Greenpoint Williamsburg Waterfront Rezoning and would the M3-1 rezoning allow on these sites to be an as of right?

BONNIE CAMPBELL: I can start and then,
David Karnofsky, if you want to jump in if I'm is
state something. But I believe that was left out of
the rezoning because Con Edison was still operating
as a utility on that site and I don't think they, at
the time, foresaw terminating that operation and then
they have since done so. And, yes, there is an as of
right scenario that was, in fact, studied in the EIS
under the existing zoning. There is a number of
manufacturing and commercial uses that can be
developed as of right.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Okay. Thank you. So, and you were talking about this before. The proposed waterfront park design with its emphasis on the access to the water and a soft shoreline which is a

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

very different design from the Domino Park and from
most waterfront public access areas. Can you just
talk about, again, what were the factors that did

5 influence the open space design here again?

BONNIE CAMPBELL: Sure. So, because have this in water infrastructure that allowed us-- the East River is very tidal and has very fast moving currents, so it's not really feasible to have kind of softened shorelines. That combined with the fact that, you know, storm surge events bring water, usually, that can breach, you know, bulkheads and that hardened design, because we have the infrastructure out in the water, we are able to hang-- it's almost like aprons. Like flowerpots in the water that dissipate the wave energy. So, you are almost creating like a little commonly and that enables us to have things like a beach that won't scour away with the times. It enables us to have things like kayaking that are safe without tremendous wave energies from the ferries, for example, and what it does is it slows the storm energy so, once it breaches, you don't have the storm retreat which caused during Sandy most of the damage. It was actually the retreat of the storm energy that causes

2 most of the Upland damage, so we are able to mitigate 3 all of those factors to create this softened

4 shoreline.

2.2

2.3

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: has Two Trees examined the potential impacts of the sea level rise on the proposed development?

poperating under the existing FEMA guidance and it is designing our buildings and the park in accordance with those. What is interesting about this park is that it can, the way that it is constructed is over time you can actually build it up as a level rises. And then, in terms of the building, you know, one pushing them to the highest part of the site and then also taking the love the life safety systems and putting them all above the second floor.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Great. And just my last question before I turn it over to Council member Levin, so, evaluating the proposal from the fair housing perspective, Two Trees has developed similar low income affordable housing units and parts of the Domino project. Can you talk to us about how those units have been successful and a they have been successful in creating opportunities for sort of the

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2.2

2.3

greater diversity of households to live in this
neighborhood?

BONNIE CAMPBELL: Yeah. And, Dave, you might want to jump in on it because I know you have more staff. I think it has been really amazing at Domino to see the amount of we have a heat map that we looked at to see kind of where the interest in those affordable housing— and they are 40, 50, and 60percent of AMI, I believe— you know, they were filled up extremely quickly. It has created much more diversity in the immediate neighborhood and enabled families, again, who either have lived in the community board or are currently living in the community board to stay there. Dave, I don't know if you want to give any more specific metrics.

DAVID LOMBINO: You know, we have developed more than 200 [inaudible 01:50:38] units at Domino. You know, there will be several hundred more that are developed there together with the affordable housing that we're doing here. There will be more than 1000 units of affordable housing along this stretch of waterfront from the Williamsport Bridge to North First Street. You know, we have been successful at achieving the community preference.

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2.2

2.3

That is not hard. There's a lot of families within the community board that are seeking, you know, more affordable housing options. You know, we are proud of the job we have done so far in terms of marketing the units to the local community and were going to continue that aggressively with the rest of our units.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Okay. Thank you. That is it for me. I want to turn it over to Council member Levin for some questions.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

much, Chair. Nice to see you, Bonnie and David.

Nice to have you on the call, Jed, from Uganda. So,

I wanted to ask a series of questions. First

question has to do with just broader proposed density

of the project. How did Two Trees arrive at the-
excuse me-- the proposed density wage I believe is

6.1 in lieu of the context surrounding the site of-
I believe Domino is 5.6 and then the 2005 rezoning

sides are 4.7.

BONNIE CAMPBELL: So, the north and south

Domino-- the density is the same act Domino as the

north side that is built, the Cook Fox building and--

think working with your office and figuring out a way

2.2

2.3

to deepen the affordability more than what the what is required by MIH in terms of the AMIs that are proposed, in addition to thinking about how to get more units in this vicinity, whether it is, you know, senior housing that is within, you know, some radius of the project or more housing on site, like we are open to a lot of options and we want to continue to work with your office to figure out, you know, how to best serve that need.

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Okay. And have you identified any sites nearby that could potentially be, you know, additional sites for affordable housing?

BONNIE CAMPBELL: We are certainly working at it hard and we expect to give your office and updates over the next couple waiting on kind of what we are thinking could potentially work for you for work for your constituents.

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Both the community board and the borough president also raised concerns about providing a baseline of two and three-bedroom units, especially with regard to the affordable housing component. Do you have proposed unit size makes in the proposal as set forth?

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

BONNIE CAMPBELL: We do not. Premature based on kind of a couple things. One, what the market is. I mean, we know that, at Domino, the demand has been trending larger from when we first started, so, you know, it does seem like the neighborhood as a whole is trending in that direction. More family sized units, I would say, but we will have to determine, you know, with the unit mix is when we get much closer to actually doing the construction drawings for these buildings and then also see what the programmatic requirements are for the affordable housing at that time and whether they have to, you know, match the market rate mix or we can deviate and potentially have some larger affordable units. We are definitely open to doing so so long as the programs will allow us to do that.

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: In the Domino development— and the only reason I ask about this is because it is close by and Two Trees is the developer, but in the Domino Development, has there been a change between unit size mixes from one development site to another?

BONNIE CAMPBELL: So, I think that between the first two buildings, the units got-- the makes

Ring to be a real kind of model for resiliency and

know, while we can't commit to it today because we

be a fully electric building, it's quite possible

are very much still learning exactly what it means to

that includes, you know, electrification.

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

78

So, you

1

21

2.2

2.3

24

resiliency, the wave attenuation construction program

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2 | that you have identified, are there-- that reduces

3 the overall energy of the waves, it does not displace

4 that energy elsewhere along the shorelines. Is that

5 right?

2.2

BONNIE CAMPBELL: No. It absorbs that, right, so it gives you like a broader landscape to absorb it for a softer head. So by the time that it reaches— It's not like pushing it up or pushing it down. In fact, not only does it, you know, really protect this public open space and our buildings, but it protects kind of a larger section of the neighborhood in reducing that wave energy. So it's not just displacing it and putting it elsewhere to exacerbate—

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Right.

BONNIE CAMPBELL: what is there, which I think is what you are asking. Yeah.

asking. Yes. Around the community facilities space, are there opportunities for additional community facilities space? You know, there is— within the application, there is no guarantee that the YMCA will indeed build up in that space. Is there— Are you

are going to move on from your questions now. Okay?

2.2

2.3

2 COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Sound good. Thank
3 you, Chair.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you, Steve.

Counsel, do we have any other Council members with questions?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: No, Chair. I see no other members with questions.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Okay. There being no further questions, the applicant panel is excused. Counsel, are there any other members— any members of the public who wish to testify on the River Ring proposal?

And for those members of the public here to testify, the please note, once again, that witnesses will generally be called in panels of up to four names at a time. If you are a member of the public who has signed up to testify on the River Ring proposal, please stand by when you hear your name being called and prepare to speak when the Chair says that you may begin. We will now hear from the first panel which will include Keith Berger, Cory Kantin, Lucy Walton, and Tami Stronach. Keith Berger to go first followed by Cory Kantin.

2 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

3 KEITH BERGER: Hi. Can you hear me

4 okay?

1

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes.

I apologize. KEITH BERGER: I am actually going to be less time because I'm on a work call. Unfortunately, this is my work today. , would implore that the Council members read my written comments and I would just like to add a couple of points. I am a long term resident and current renter in the neighborhood. I have seen the impact of the development along the waterfront, having lived in a waterfront building now for 13 years and, you know, look, I think Two Trees has done certain things really well and Domino is a great Park, although I would like to note that Domino itself is still three buildings away from being complete, so the impact of that building on this community along with a number of other buildings across this waterfront corridor are still not really felt and so to add now another 3000 potential residents on top of this area without any infrastructure development or thought or planning is one issue. I am a very big fan of affordable

housing. I am on a Homeless Services board and have been dealing with affordable housing issues for years, but, you know, I've also seen affordable housing built in other units along this waterfront that has still resulted in significant displacement of people in this community, so I am a fan of retaining some housing, but I think 3000 additional units is too much. It's clear that this developer is willing to make some changes to this. They have claimed they can't go down on density. I would like to urge the Council and members to really question that and really get actual details and numbers and talk to others. I think that they could easily retain 263 affordable units in this development while reducing the size of the development by 25 or 30percent or more easily. I am a member of the Land Use Committee and we spend a lot of time on the conditions that were presented to CB one and approved by all CB one members and I would strongly urge the committee to take those conditions very seriously. Thank you very much for your time.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you for your

testimony. Next speaker, please?

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Cory Kantin to be 3 followed by Lucy Walton.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

CORY KANTIN: Good morning, Council Thank you for your service to our city. members. So, I don't envy you. I realize that it is not an easy task to be a decision-maker on a controversial development. But you don't have to actually be the decision-maker if you follow the voice of the people. In fact, as a public servant, it is-year-old to follow the voice of the community and the community has spoken. As Keith just said, CB one sent a whole lot of detailed conditions for that is that everyone voted and agreed on and, to clarify those, it was essentially affordability and density. Community Board one asked for 50percent of affordable units and one third reduction of density and, you know, the developer claims they can't do both and that is probably true, but it's also not our problem. don't need this rezoning, but they do. And, yes, I agree that we need affordable housing and they are offering that, but the luxury housing this development includes is the exact thing that actually makes our city less affordable. So, unless the ratio

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

CORY KANTIN: listen to the community.

2.3

24

please--

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2 CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you. Thank you 3 for your testimony.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: The next speaker will be Lucy Walton followed by Tami Stronach.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

LUCY WALTON: Thank you very much and appreciate the due process today. Like many of our neighbors, I'm actually pro development of this site, however, I am not pro development to the level of 3000 units which I think will simply overwhelm our infrastructure. And I would support the conditions that the community have put together a with a one third reduction of density and also an increase in affordable units. Our task is that the investment in the land, as Cory pointed out, is not the starting position for the negotiation. In fact, this developer is extracting a tremendous amount of value from our neighborhood and we ask that we do not accept their first offer of their plan. Instead, we uphold the CB one conditions which were put together by the community. We ask that we are not railroaded into a snap decision on what will be Brooklyn's second-largest tower and a tremendous legacy of Steve Levin and of this Council. Just because it suits the

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

developer to do this quickly, this should have much, much more detailed public consultation that has been possible during the pandemic and zoom meetings with limited access and then another hearings where, you know, extreme weather events have been taking place at the exact same time. So, question just why we are doing this so quickly because it suits the developer. I would also like to question the misrepresentation of the acreage of parkland. 3 acres of which are underwater and the need for increased access to the waterfront which I have heard numerous times when a 36-year-old man died at Domino Park recently. I don't think it is the responsible thing to do to allow children and dog walkers and even adults anymore access to the waterfront given the dangers of that particular current. I think there have been some really gross misrepresentations of the people who are against this as NIMBY or just against all development. I, myself, could be characterized as one of those gentrified errors in the neighborhood. I would say that I'm very pro development as are many of the people who live here, but in a sensible and thoughtful manner and, by the way, this development is going to increase the value of many of our units,

having some technical difficulties. I was the last

2.2

2.3

speaker on this panel, Mr. Chair. And I will-- I don't see any members with questions, so with your permission, I will call the next panel which will include Ward Dennis, Richard Mazar, Katie Denny Horwitz, and Joe Chan. Tami Stronach, we will try to get back to you in a future panel. The first speaker on this panel will be Ward Dennis followed by Richard Mazar.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

WARD DENNIS: Good afternoon, everyone. My name is Ward Dennis. I live on Grand Street less than a block away from the proposed River Ring site and also from the developers Domino site. I was a member of Community Board One during the 2005
Greenpoint Williamsburg waterfront rezoning and the first domino rezoning and Chair of the land use
Committee during much of that time. Testifying on my own behalf today in general support of the rezoning of the River Street site to the residential use with some conditions and comments on this application specifically. First, I really strongly support the proposed open space which I think is nothing short of this and area. It is a resilient and it is equitable. I have been advocating for waterfront

housing and more affordability than those sites.

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25 | 100percent of the community was against what

were sold out in a rezoning of 2005 because

dealing with what we are left with and, basically, we

2.3

ultimately happened on the waterfront. So, given that and that we were dealt, when we got here in 1950, virtually 100percent of the community was affordable because who else would want to live in the middle of a industrial wasteland surrounded by polluted water with zero access to the waterfront? Think about it. People actually lived in these communities of Greenpoint Williamsburg all of their lives without ever having access to the waterfront. So, moving fast forward, we have fought all the good fights. Councilman Levin and I were arm in arm. remember when hundreds of people pretty close to the site fighting for 40percent of affordability and trying to get larger units because, remember, Weill came here with families of three, four, five, six, whatever, so we need larger apartments. Having said all of this, I look at the project and say wow. can actually get to the waterfront without sneaking on like I used to as a kid. We can take care of some of the children because we run 350-- we run programs for 350 children after school and the YMCA and Sarco partners in taking care of our you and the YMCA is also the people's gym. So, you know, locals can

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

here in North Brooklyn and it is with that mission in

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

that we could find that met our locational price

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2 criteria and we concluded that the sites that were

3 available would cost us about 3 to 4 times what we

4 could afford to build a new YMCA on. At that time,

5 Two Trees approached us with the opportunity to be

6 included within River Ring.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

JO CHAN: The location was ideal. The terms were reasonable. Just to wrap, what we will get out of this is a pool that is multiple times bigger than what we have now, a gym that is multiple times bigger--

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you. Thank you again for your testimony. I see that we have-- that was the last speaker?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Say that we have

Council member. His hand up, so I am going to turn

it over to Council member Levin.

COUNCIL MEMBER LEVIN: Chair, I just want to thank this panel and the previous panel will friend the neighbors of mine and I just wanted to acknowledge their testimony and thank them for doing this today and taking time out of their busy days.

2.2

2.3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

In particular, I haven't seen Richmond time, so, hey, rich. It's been a while. Okay. That's all.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: No other members with questions for the panel, Chair, I call the next panel which will include Matt Emmi and Tami Stronach.

Matt Emmi to testify first.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

MATT EMMI: Good afternoon, Council. Thank you for taking the time to hear your comments. I am a business owner who has been in the Greenpoint and Williamsburg area and operated for 12 years and I would like to speak out against the proposed development as it sits. While there are many thoughtful items about the River Praying rezoning proposal that I can appreciate, I can't fathom any reason why the city should grant the opening offer. This is a negotiation and this is a negotiation that should exist between the city residents and the developer and the community board. The current proposal is no different from a pre-COVID opening offer we saw three years ago and incorporated snow community feedback, only input taken from a park meeting that had no bearing on the design and the layout of the building itself. Sustainable

Tami Stronach.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

24

2.3

be the next speaker.

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Tami Stronach, we need you to accept the unmute request in order to

4 begin.

1

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

TAMI STRONACH: Am I unmuted finally?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes. Yes.

TAMI STRONACH: Hello? Oh, I'm so sorry having technical difficulties. Thank you so much for allowing me to speak today. I am a long-term resident of Williamsburg. I have been here for 30 years. I came in with a plethora of artists. I opened a modern dance theater here that was subsequently lost to development. All of my friends have moved. I, personally, would benefit financially from this transaction because it will increase the value of my apartment, but the soul of the neighborhood is not something you can put a price on and I feel like Williamsburg is just being gutted at the benefit of massive developers. In the bottom line here is profit for them. It isn't sustainability and resiliency and affordable housing. But the bigger issue for me is I actually like the conversation I heard today. I liked a lot of the proposals on the table. I just don't think that this is a good partner. From what I've heard, they have

24

25

3 affordable housing, they have lied to tenants about

4 their affordable housing being affordable housing.

5 That went to court and an appellate court found them

6 guilty of fraud. And I just don't understand how are

7 | Council members can't sleep past negligent behavior

8 | like that under the table. If you are going to

9 partner with somebody, you need to actually know that

10 | they actually are going to meet their requirements.

11 \parallel So, what I am saying is I'm sure that this will be

12 | rammed down our throats. I'm sure there is nothing

13 | much we can do about it, but what we can do about it

14 with this zoning opportunity for you guys to speak

15 for us is make sure there is oversight. Make sure

16 there isn't these beautiful bullet points and these

17 | lovely speaking points that public speaking coaches

18 \parallel gave them, but that actually these things materialize

19 and that is going to mean oversight for the

20 conditions that the whole community agreed on

21 | wanting. Please look at those conditions and fight

22 | for them. Fight for us. This is our neighborhood.

23 | This giant Tokyo style tower is going to look down on

this and this little peons are going to look up at it

and feel completely helpless in the face of

affordable housing. This project, a private

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

development, ambitiously seeks to do its part to address these three important challenges. affordable housing, all too often, the priorities of open space and affordability are pitted against each In private developments, Two Trees has demonstrated a commitment to both with this project, prioritizing affordability of those New Yorkers most in need of affordable housing. The development proposal currently dedicates 25percent of the total units to affordability with 40percent of those units targeted the very low income New Yorkers making 40percent of the area median income. While New Yorkers for Parks focuses on opens space, open space must have equitable access and Two Trees initial proposal is a start in that direction. With parks space, according to our own research, going is one of the lowest rates of open space per capita in the city, making this development of parks a critical priority. Even though there is no requirement for the developer to do so, Two Trees is committed to building ambitious Park open spaces from Brooklyn Navy Yard to Newtown Creek, unthinkable just 10 years ago, what's more is it will be fully public and paid for and maintained by private dollars, costing the

square feet of the neighborhood retail, over 6 acres

of waterfront Park, and resiliency infrastructure.

24

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

We see this as a textual and welcome addition to the Williamsburg waterfront. Two Trees has consistently offered well-designed projects that meet a wide range of the needs in the communities in which they build. In addition to affordable housing, the project will create 506 permanent jobs and over 2000 construction jobs. This is a significant amount of job creation in our post pandemic economy. The site is designed for storm resiliency which is increasingly necessary measure to protect against flooding as we address the effects of climate change. This flood mitigation would extend beyond the site itself and into potentially 500 surrounding inland sites. Sustainable features including infrastructure that will not rely on or in any way burden the city's sewer, stormwater, or electrical grid. We are in full support of the sale of-- I'm sorry. That's a different second page and I apologize for that. would like to see this project built in its current format. It is sustainable, and addresses the need for housing in every sector of the borough, and we urge you to approve it. Thank you.

will be the next speaker followed by Renzo Ramirez.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Kendall Charter

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

be the next speaker.

2 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

KENDALL CHARTER: Good morning. Thank you, Council members. My name is Kendall Charter. am the executive director of the Greenpoint YMCA. really strongly support this project. The YMCA is thrilled to be part of the River Ring project which will include a new YMCA that will serve thousands of families and young people in Greenpoint and Williamsburg. We welcome the opportunity to provide additional services and resources to our community where we have been for more than 100 years since 1906. Our goal is to serve more in our community, supporting working families and young people. Offering programs like second grade swim, families swim, lifeguard training, afterschool training programs, early childhood development, sports programs, wellness programs for seniors and adults, and a place where our community can come together to make new friends. Again, we support the River Ring project and a new YMCA, serving thousands more families and young people in Greenpoint and Williamsburg. Thank you.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Renzo Ramirez will

2 RENZO RAMIREZ: Hello. Can you guys

3 hear me?

1

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes.

RENZO RAMIREZ: All right. Awesome. Sorry if you can hear me. Good evening. My name is Renzo Ramirez and I am a member of 32 BJ. I work as a doorman and, as you know, 32 BJ is the largest properties service Union and representing 85,000 service workers across the city. We maintain, clean, and provide security services and buildings like the one being discussed at River Ring. We estimate that this rezoning, which will allow the construction of two residential towers with nearly 300 affordable apartments, community, retail, and parking space, River Ring will provide 500 permanent jobs and more than 2000 construction jobs on a site that currently supports zero employment. The permanent jobs include YMCA employees, building service workers, park maintenance, retail, and nonprofit employees. commitment to good, permanent jobs in this project is The best way to make sure that developments like the one proposed have a positive impact on building service workers is for developers to make a formal commitment to paying the prevailing wage and

RENZO RAMIREZ:

24

25

your time, guys.

Okay. Thank you for

Leon followed by Rashid Littlejohn.

1

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair, that was the last speaker on this panel and I don't see any members for questions for this panel, so, with your permission, we will call the next panel which will include José Leon, Rashid Littlejohn, Ruben Colón, and Sinade Wadsworth. The first speaker will be José

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

JOSÉ LEON: Good afternoon, Council members. Good afternoon, Council members. Thank you for the opportunity to testify on the River Ring project. I am with St. Nick's Alliance and St. Nick's Alliance and El Puente make up the community coalition. Organizations engaged in an affordable housing, environmental justice, and creating access for low income people seeking a foothold in the economic growth in New York City. My testimony on recommendations from the coalition has been presented to the community board, community Board one, the Brooklyn Borough President's office, and to Council member Steve Levin and Antonio Reynoso. I will speak about the coalition's recommendations on affordable housing and jobs and a colleague from El Puente who will be joining a little bit later. Collectively,

Most of the current inclusionary units are at the

RASHID LITTLEJOHN:

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

24

25

How are you doing?

2 RASHID LITTLEJOHN: My name is Rashid 3 Littlejohn, a member of the Bushwick community, also 4 a nonprofit leader and I am much in support of this project and I see the innovation and the ingenuity that is in the design and the impact that it can have 6 on the community. My concern is more so with the 7 quality-of-life of what the affordable housing 8 opportunities will be for those recipients who gain access to having more family units, you know, for 10 11 individuals that have, you know, the desire to grow, 12 you know, their family size. I also think that there 13 should be a lot more units allocated in this project 14 for affordable housing as this is an opportunity to 15 turn the tides of what it means to intermix luxury 16 apartments and developing communities as well as how 17 we are going to have the necessary support of those 18 who are in affordable housing and really just 19 creating a culture of inclusion and not, you know, 20 what can also feel like segregation at many points if it's only allocated for certain recipients in one 21 corner more so than just allowing people to have a 2.2 2.3 full existence throughout these different developments. And I just pray that our Council 24 members work with leaders in the community that look 25

like the residents of the affordable housing units to 2 3 make sure that there is leadership when it comes to 4 making sure the voices of those who gain access to this space are heard and concerns about being 5 included in the community are always met when it 6 7 comes to really having opportunities and access to positions of leadership and power, whether it is

8

working with Two Trees or within a lot of the

businesses that will come. I am Rashid and I lay my 10

11 claim.

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

1

Ruben Colón will be COMMITTEE COUNSEL: the next speaker followed by Sinade Wadsworth. Ruben Colón.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

RUBEN COLÓN: Yes. Good afternoon. you for giving me an opportunity to speak. I am a Brooklyn resident, lifelong resident and a member of my community board. I am here speaking on behalf of the Carpenters Union and thousands of members with ties to Brooklyn. Thus far, Two Trees management has complied with the suggestions and wishes of the community board with reference to engaging in dialogue with a Carpenters Union on labor standards. We are scheduled to meet again in early December.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2 Therefore, that Carpenters Union, on behalf of over

3 | 300 Carpenter families which would be affected

4 directly by your decision, would like to express our

5 | continued support for the River Ring project at this

6 | time. Sinade Wadsworth will not be speaking today.

7 She had another engagement, so I want to thank you

8 again, Councilman Moya, Councilman Levin for the

9 opportunity to speak. Thank you, sir.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Okay. We just heard that Sinade Wadsworth would not be speaking on this panel, so this panel has concluded. Chair, I see no members of questions, so we will call the next panel which will include Scott Baker, Paul Samulski, Daniella Castillo, Marcel Negret. First speaker will be Scott Baker followed by Paul Samulski.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

am the leader of the biking group, the Urban Cyclists with 2500 members and what you go all over the city, including the new waterfront in Brooklyn Queens. I am also the leader of the River Arch consortium and I am strongly in favor of this project. I think Two Trees has gone above and beyond what is required, especially in the park land. They are going into the

you can hear me, we need you to accept the--

2 PAUL SAMULSKI: Hello?

1

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

3 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Hello.

PAUL SAMULSKI: Hi. Two good afternoon because we have been here a while. Thanks for the opportunity to be heard. My name is Paul Samulski and I am the president of the North Brooklyn Chamber. We are a hyper local business organization that represents Bushwick, Greenpoint, and Williamsburg and I'd like to inform the Council at this time that we are in favor of the River Ring proposal and actually have been since it was first presented to us back in 2019. The idea of taking a potentially dangerous eyesores such as the old Con Ed fuel oil storage site on the North Brooklyn waterfront and turning it into a thoughtfully designed new addition to our urban waterfront was always of interest to us. The fact that, throughout the entire series of public and community board meetings, Two Trees has been open to reacting to the conditions that have been put before them, makes us even more, chair ball and supportive of this project. Productively dealing with the issues of climate resiliency and carbon footprint, the need for affordable housing units, the ability to offer a significant number of local jobs, union to

the opportunity to present the local YMCA with a potential new facility which would serve the community, and positively satisfying those issues shows the character of Two Trees, which I'm happy to say has been a good neighbor to North Brooklyn for many decades. The addition of the River Breathing will completely continue as public waterfront that stretches from Domino Park up to Bushwick in the park and will address the major missing piece in the connection between Williamsburg and Greenpoint, to communities where we are obviously very passionate about. Also, expressing concerns pertaining to the impact that the River Ring would have on our North Brooklyn infrastructure, we hosted a meeting with the MTA to directly discuss the local subway situation, specifically the L train which was thought to receive the lion share of additional ridership in the MTA assured us the detailed presentation that, with the recent improvements--

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

PAUL SAMULSKI: in the local stations that will prevent any public transit nightmare due to the addition of River Ring.

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

envisioned a promenade or park that would allow

residents access to spend time along this amenity,

24

2

3

4

5

6

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

but, unfortunately, we have received multiple up zoning projects against the affordability goals expressed in the 197A Plan and historical piece of the open green space promised in the 2005 rezoning plan. We feel the massive and nor Medio this project and the speed at which it has moved through ULURP has not properly allowed for genuine community input, but we hope these concerns are taken seriously into account. We understand the concerns regarding the dire lack of affordable housing and are in agreement with the demands put forth by Los Sures as well as the focus on workforce development posed by St. Nick's. We appreciate the conditions made by CB Juan and offer suggestions to push forward on these items, especially in regards to affordability and density. Knowing the immensity of this proposal will inevitably bring massive changes and increased displacement, we need to offer demands to mitigate these long-term and equitable environmental impacts of the project and those being knowing that the open space will not adequately respond to the increased residents that will come through Domino and River During, we propose funding and support for new parks and improvements to open spaces, specifically to

directly in the crosshairs of the climate crisis.

Ιn

24

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

addition to other climate impacts of heat and increased precipitation, the slow, steady and accelerating rise of sea levels threatens to permanently inundate neighborhoods and infrastructure. We also have a deficit of open space. Only 66percent of New Yorkers are within a five minute walk to a park and Community District One, in particular, has one of the lowest amounts of park land per capita within the city. In RPA's own forth regional plan, we called for a combination of resiliency strategies, including zoning changes and investments in engineered and nature-based solutions to adequately adapt to our changing coastline and provide access to new open space. In this regard, River Ring could serve as a regional model. project will help set new resiliency standards for development projects in the city and beyond. are some reasonable considerations and ideas that have been proposed throughout the public review process. There are particularly two that were included in the resolution of the borough president's office that we think are worth highlighting. have time to elaborate on love, but we will submit a written testimony that touches on those, but that has

My name is Michael and I am a fourth

generation Greenpointer. Board, PS 110 PTA and the

CBA one land use committee that deliberated this

2.3

24

recommendations to maximize the community benefits

2.2

2.3

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Ramon Peguero will be the next speaker followed by Millie Khemiri.

Ramon Peguero.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Ramon, if you can hear me, we need you to accept the unmute request and turn on your video. We will try to come back to Ramon Peguero and go next to Millie Khemiri. Millie Khemiri, if you can hear me, we need you to accept the unmute. Thank you.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

MILLIE KHEMIRI: Hi. Good afternoon. My name is Millie Khemiri and I'm a licensed social worker with the Administration for Children Services, ACS, and a longtime resident in Williamsburg for the last 36 years. I fully support the River Ring project. I love what Two Trees has done in the

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

community. I have seen the positive impact and it has been instrumental to transform the waterfront in the south side of Williamsburg. This is a critical housing site in a city that has a growing housing crisis. New York City is in dire need of affordable housing and this housing crisis will only escalate with the immediate and direct action. effective way to combat this crisis is to build more housing, especially affordable housing for low income families and this is an obvious and critical site for housing. This community has long fought the replace sites like this with housing and open space. site is one of our last chances to access significant open space on the waterfront which is exactly what this is and I have seen how this neighborhood has gentrified and I don't think it's fair to leave this land vacant or turned into another factory. Additionally, my nieces then I have truly enjoyed Domino Park and I am excited to see what River Ring will offer to the community and I am super excited to see finally a YMCA in my neighborhood for the children and the community to enjoy. It will also create an opportunity for New Yorkers of all ages to interact with the East River and touch and feel the

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

1

10

11

20

25

2 | water to help change how we think of our future in

3 | light of climate change. The new approach to the

4 | water will also provide a six acre model for

5 resiliency, ecology, education, recreation, and

6 community building. I'm looking forward to see what

7 this new development brings to my community. Thank

8 you so much for allowing me to speak on behalf of--

9 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Luke Loreti will be

the next speaker on the panel. Luke Loreti.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

12 LUKE LORETI: Hi. My name is Luke. I'm a

13 | North Brooklyn resident living about a 10 minute

14 | block away from the River Ring site. I think this

15 proposal is a home run. Building this gives us over

16 | 1000 much needed homes. The construction of market

17 | rate housing will prevent high income earners from

18 | outbidding current residents of our neighborhood for

19 | our existing housing stock. That is to say, not

building this will result in increased displacement

21 \parallel pressure along the L train deeper into Brooklyn.

22 | Even better, 260 of the proposed units are

23 permanently affordable. If we don't build housing

24 \parallel here, those 260 families will almost certainly not

have a place to live in an increasingly expensive

of the waterfront soon.

2.2

2.3

Williamsburg. Brooklyn CB One approved this proposal with the requested that the project cut 300 homes. I asked that the Council rejected this request as it greatly diminishes the benefits I just mentioned and shouldn't be considered in the context of an ongoing housing crisis. Thank you for giving me opportunity to speak today and I hope to enjoy this new stretch

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will try once again to hear testimony from Ramon Peguero. Ramon, if you can hear me, we would ask that you accept the unmute request in order to begin your testimony.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

RAMON PEGUERO: Thank you. My name is
Ramon Peguero. I am the of the Committee for
Hispanic Children and Families. I am also the board
chair for Los Tres Ninos Child Development
Corporation and also a board member of the Brooklyn
Navy Yard Corp. I've been a resident of Williamsburg
since the age of six. I raised my family here.
Worked here for the past 25 years, I've been working
nonprofits that support and enhance the service
delivery models for those that are the most in need
in Williamsburg. I was happy to hear that Two Trees

that Two Trees has brought to Williamsburg. I thank

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

you and I ask for your vote of support for this
project.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: That was the last panelist on this panel, Mr. Chair. With your permission, I see no members with questions, so we will call the next panel which will include Susan Albrecht. Susan Albrecht will be the next speaker.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

SUSAN ALBRECHT: Hi. You can hear me,

right?

2.2

2.3

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Right.

SUSAN ALBRECHT: Okay. Good. All right. Thank you. My name is Susan Albrecht. I am 30 year resident of North Brooklyn and a former member of community Board one. I am speaking in opposition to the proposed rezoning. Before I begin my testimony, I ask the city Council legal staff and Department of City Planning to review the viability or validity of the initial public hearing on this matter which was held in person on September 1, 2021. There was no opportunity for members of the community to join the meeting remotely and no video was made of this hearing to inform the public of the details of this very, very significant project. On that evening, New

2 York City experienced an unprecedented rainstorm. 3 The Mayor of New York City urged residents not to 4 travel and issued a state of emergency, but this initial an important rezoning hearing was held. 5 attended it in many, many people who preregister did 6 7 not appear. I believe that this initial September 1 8 public hearing should be deemed invalid because of the state of emergency. But here we are today in the ULURP process for River Ring application has 10 11 continued at an unprecedented speed the railroad this rezoning through all channels before the end of this 12 13 administration. The River Ring project is too large 14 for our already congested neighborhood. At a height 15 of 60 stories, it's more than 50percent higher than what was planned in the 2005 waterfront rezoning. 16 17 The proposed development is irresponsible and would 18 add more than 1000 units to one-way streets bordered by water a neighborhood with a troubled subway line 19 20 in an area that is suffering more condo construction 21 than any other in New York City. The proposed park 2.2 is flawed and misleading. All the they promise that 2.3 2.9 aboveground acres is -- fails to meet the 2.5 acres of open space per 1000 people given that the 24 towers will add over 2000 residents. So, exactly 25

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 132
2	what are the benefits to the community of this out of
3	scale proposal and project that will ultimately
4	enrich the developer? The key one is that everyone
5	talks about the commitment to 25percent affordable
6	housing. Wall that might be considered admirable,
7	the developer could do much more and I asked the New
8	York City Council to look closely at the thoughtful
9	conditions developed by community Board one and their
10	recommendation. Most specifically, increase the
11	number of affordable units and decrease the size of
12	this ridiculously large and out of scale project.
13	Thank you very much.
14	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: That was the last
15	speaker on this panel, Mr. Chair. I see no members
16	with questions for this panel, so we will move to the
17	next panel which will include Neil Sheehan, Ray
18	Acosta, Edward Perez, and William Thomas. The first
19	speaker will be Neil Sheehan followed by Ray Acosta.
20	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.
21	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Neil Sheehan, we
22	need you to accept
23	NEIL SHEEHAN: Yes. Yes. Can you hear
24	me?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes.

2 NEIL SHEEHAN: Thank you. I'm Neil Sheehan. Currently, I'm the Chairperson and 3 4 cofounder of the North Brooklyn Angles which is a group dedicated to neighbors helping neighbors. have about 300 weekly volunteers involved and we 6 7 provide food to 1500 meals and about five or 10,000 pounds of food in our community. We see old, we see, 8 we see in between. There is a huge need for affordable housing in our community if the 10 11 international people aren't going to hold on. 12 want to clear up something because it's kind of like 13 my commitment to Fox News [inaudible 03:04:44]. Trees is a development with a grade reputation in our 14 15 community and this nonsense about criminal cases and 16 whatever is nothing other than nonsense or somebody 17 not knowing what they are talking about. Having said 18 that, I was involved in the rezoning in 2005. I 19 headed the clergy group with the Bishop of Brooklyn 20 and worked on the rezoning issue should try to bring affordability to our community. This community needs 21 2.2 affordability. Two Trees can do that. Steve is a 2.3 great guy. I worked with him before he was a Councilman. Steve, I trust you to push those issues 24 25 that you brought up and to push the affordability to

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

135

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Edward Perez will be the next speaker followed by William Thomas.

Edward Perez.

away as from Coney Island and all the way to

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

24

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

Williamsburg.

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL:

1

4

6

Edward Perez, if

3 you can hear us, we need you to accept the unmute.

EDWARD PEREZ: Hello? Okay. Good

5 afternoon, Council, and thank you for the opportunity

to speak today. My name is Edward Perez. I am the

7 senior monitoring director at the Big Apple Group.

We are also a member of the New York state 8

Association for affordable housing in the supportive

housing network of New York. I would like to comment 10

11 in favor of this project with considerations for the

12 protection of adjacent structures. Demolition of the

13 C word structures and excavation states for both

14 towers would have the potential to create excessive

15 vibrations as well as resolve: vertical displacement

16 that could affect the adjacent structures and their

17 tenants. The Big Apple Group, we would recommend a

18 monitoring protocol that includes a pre-existing

19 conditions survey of the adjacent structures as well

20 as optical and vibration monitoring. Behind me, the

21 image behind me, that is the Hereford Inlaid Seawall

2.2 in North Wildwood New Jersey which is also an Army

2.3 Corps of Engineers project. The contractor is

roadbuilding that seawall using 31,000 tons, just a 24

little over 31,000 tons of stone fill and capstone. 25

Protecting the homeless adjacent to the construction.		
And to comment on MTA infrastructure, you know, I can		
tell you from experience that it's not as bad as		
people think in Brooklyn. We are monitoring a few		
projects overseeing construction that is adjacent to		
a variety of tunnels. A development of this size, it		
wouldn't be the first project that we are working on		
them Brooklyn. For that very same reason, you know,		
we recommend that monitoring protocols. Something as		
simple as reflective targets that are mounted on the		
adjacent buildings and seismographs with sensors that		
are mounted on the adjacent buildings and structures,		
this would protect from any excessive vibrations. To		
monitor continuously and remotely and, in the case of		
any exceedances, we do notify the contractors		
immediately so they can stop work. Anybody		
interested in having the Big Apple Group conduct		
monitoring in the protection of adjacent structures		
or other so engineering solutions like geotechnical		
investigations or special inspections can reach me at		
718-767-2900		

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.

1

3

4

6

7

8 9

10

11 12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19 20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

EDWARD PEREZ: or you can read more about it at vibrationmonitoring.com. Thank you for your time.

William Thomas will COMMITTEE COUNSEL: be the next and last speaker on this panel.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

Hi, everyone. My name WILLIAM THOMAS: is Will Thomas. I am here to support the proposal for River Ring is the executive director of Open New York. We are an independent grassroots Pro housing organization. We believe that this project will help to alleviate New York's dire housing shortage and actively helped to cut displacement and surrounding areas and I hope the Council can also find a way to support the project. On some level, I believe everyone realizes that New York is in a dire housing shortage, but let me toss out a few numbers so everyone can remember how bad it is. There are thousands of children that sleep in shelters every single night. 14,000 children. Homelessness is at a highest rate since the Great Depression. affordable homes in this proposal are badly, badly needed. In addition, the market rate homes this rezoning will allow will also help by proactively

2.3

24

25

2 preventing displacement elsewhere. The median 3 household income of this census tract is well over 4 six figures. More broadly, the Williamsburg 5 waterfront is an extremely desirable area and although it would be many families first choice, if 6 7 the wealthy can't find new places to live here, they 8 will simply bid up the price of existing housing and if families who would otherwise have lived in that housing will instead move to more affordable 10 11 neighborhoods. As displaced demand increases, up goes the rent which forces current tenants to 12 13 allocate ever larger shares of their income to stay 14 in their homes. If we don't let young professionals 15 live here, they're not going to disappear. going to further displacement pressures and East 16 17 Williamsburg, Bushwick, and more of Brooklyn. 18 Council should spare families this pressure by 19 supporting the project. Last but not least, I think 20 the Council should consider making one ask of the 21 developer. They are seeking a waiver to lower their 2.2 parking. I think the city should go one step further

and mandate the developer include no parking

whatsoever completely as parking has proven to add

substantially to housing prices. They can replace

5 neighborhood. Thank you.

2.2

2.3

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair, that was the last speaker on this panel and I see no members with questions, so we will call the next panel which will include Eliza Grace Madrone, Juana Rodriguez, Peter Malinowski, and Luke Grochowski. Eliza Grace Madrone will speak first followed by Juana Rodriguez.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

ELIZA GRACE MADRONE: Good afternoon. My name is Eliza Grace ledger. I am the communications manager for the Brooklyn Greenway Initiative and I want to thank you for the opportunity to testify in support of the River Ring proposal on behalf of the Brooklyn Greenway Initiative. We are a nonprofit organization that has been focused on the Brooklyn waterfront Greenway for two decades. As a 22 mile green ribbon of active transportation and open space from Greenpoint to East New York and we are in support of Two Trees River Ring proposal and would like to ask you to consider approving it as presented. The city's open space has never been more

which would be a significant ongoing investment in

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 142
2	the community and the public realm at large without
3	adding to the city budget. We need to protect our
4	shoreline from sea level rise and super storms and
5	foster the
6	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.
7	ELIZA GRACE MADRONE: connection. Thank
8	you.
9	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Juana Rodriguez
10	will be the next speaker.
11	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.
12	JUANA RODRIGUEZ: [speaking foreign
13	language]
14	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: [speaking foreign
15	language]
16	JUANA RODRIGUEZ: [speaking foreign
17	language]
18	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: [speaking foreign
19	language]
20	JUANA RODRIGUEZ: [speaking foreign
21	language]
22	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: The next speaker
23	will be Peter Malinowski to be followed by Luke
24	Grochowski.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

25

2 PETER MALINOWSKI: Hi. Good afternoon. 3 I am here to testify in support of the River Ring 4 proposal. I am representing Billion Oyster Project. We already ecosystem restoration and public education initiative nonprofit that works citywide, so we work 6 7 throughout all five boroughs throughout all 500 miles 8 of coastline trying to make New York Harbor more accessible and abundant plays by restoring oyster reefs to the harbor with communities around New York 10 11 City-- particularly public school students. 12 waterfront design proposed by River Ring is 13 innovative and is one of very few examples where a developer or city agency or anything like that works 14 15 to make the harbor more accessible to New Yorkers and 16 welcome the East River into the city in a way that is 17 safe and responsible. We have been working with Two 18 Trees for the last few years engaging the public and 19 public school students in the water and monitoring 20 water quality at the site. I have to say that I find 21 the earlier comments that New Yorkers should not have 2.2 access to the water because that might be dangerous 2.3 to be deeply offensive and that the fact that we should only have -- that only people that can afford 24

houses and shoreline communities should have access

know, I think the value that the community will

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Paul Pullo, if you can hear me, we need you to accept the unmute request in order to begin your testimony. Paul Pullo, if you can hear me, we need you to accept the unmute request.

PAUL PULLO: Hi. Yes. I'm here.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Okay, Paul.

PAUL PULLO: Hi. Okay. Sorry. So, okay. My name is Paul Pullo. I'm the board Chair of the Greenpoint Y and I'm also the president of North Brooklyn Development. I am wholeheartedly in favor of this project. It is going to bring affordable housing. It's going to bring permanent jobs and union construction jobs, but more important to me, it is going to have a brand-new beautiful Y with a state-of-the-art aquatic center. It's going to be able to bring the Y to the southside and the northside of Brooklyn, communities who have not had the benefit of a YMCA. This design is magnificent. It's futuristic and it's bold and I think that, wholeheartedly, the community is going to have something that generations are going to look forward to. So, thank you for your time and please approve the project.

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: The next speaker 3 will be Allyson Stone.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

Hello. Good afternoon. ALLYSON STONE: My name is Allyson Stone and I am a neighbor on the south side of Williamsburg. I live just a few blocks south of Domino Park. I'm also a member of the Land Use Committee. I was very much part of the decision making process that other CB One members have mentioned at today's meeting. Two Trees does a lot for the neighborhood. I'm a mom raising a family here and it's really nice to have some extra green space and some new development in the area. I know we have some concerns about the expansion and growth here in the neighborhood from other neighbors and Two Trees really have proven themselves to be the leaders in keeping out neighborhood clean. I have taken matters into my own hands. I've lead community clean ups here on the southside. It's no secret that the streets are pretty busy at night and sometimes during the day with some four legged friends and it's, I think, at an all time high. So we're hoping to clean up the neighborhood and I really do believe that Two Trees and the River Ring project will benefit the

2.2

2.3

thanks again.

neighborhood far and wide and make our neighborhood, which all of us care about so deeply, an even better environment and even safer place for families and children and working with great developers who are presenting this wonderful project. So, I am in support of it. Thank you for your time today. And

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Zane Shelby will be the next speaker.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

ZANE SHELBY: Good afternoon. My name is Zane Shelby. Thank you for this opportunity to speak. I want to express my support for the River Ring proposal. I have lived in North Brooklyn for eight years. I am a former resident of Williamsburg, but like many others, I had to move away as rents in the area rose. This project, if approved, will be a powerful weapon against displacement. It will provide new arrivals with an alternative to competing with current residence for the severely limited in existing housing stock. What's more is it is currently zoned for industrial use, so there are no residents on site who will be affected. When you consider the needs of the community, I would ask that

you can hear me, we need you to accept the unmute

2.2

2.3

River Run project, very involved in environmental work. I care deeply about green infrastructure, natural habitat, water quality, and people's access to nature and to parks and I think this project is invaluable in those respects. The landscape design is stunning in terms of its aesthetic value, as well as its ecological value. And I think a lot of thought has been put into it and I think the neighborhoods will benefit from it and also so will

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Rose Angel Perez will be the next speaker.

our water quality into much for my testimony.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

ROSE ANGEL PEREZ: Hello. I'm not sure if you can see me. Can you hear me?

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: We can't see you, but we can hear you.

ROSE ANGEL PEREZ: Oh. That's wonderful.

Thank you for the opportunity to speak to this

amazing panel. My name is Rose Angel Perez. I am

one of the Perez sisters. I was born and raised in

Williamsburg Brooklyn. I am affordable housing

advocate. I am also a small business owner. My

sister and I have a small business right in front of

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2.2

2.3

2 CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair, that was the last speaker on this panel. I don't see any members with questions for the panel, so we will get to the next panel which, I believe, will include Harrison Grinnan, Julia Amanda Foster, Melissa Cosme, and Sunny Ng. Harrison Grinnan to speak first followed by Julia Amanda Foster.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

HARRISON GRINNAN: Hello. My name is
Harrison Grinnan. I am a resident of Greenpoint. I
live about a 10 minute walk from the location that is
under the consideration. I would like to talk about
the community board meeting that I attended on this
topic. This was the night of the superstar. After
the meeting, which was primarily a majority support
for the project in question, on the walk home, and it
up encountering floodwater that was about 18 inches
deep. It went above my kneecaps. For me, that was a
very disgusting inconvenience, but that night was
deadly for many in Queens. The reason for that is
because we don't have enough housing. More than
100,000 people live in basement units in New York
City and even if we gave them money to buy or rent a

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

non-basement unit -- these are the illegal units that are under discussion -- even if we gave them money, they wouldn't be able to find one because there aren't 100,000 empty units available in New York at The only way that we are going to any given time. give people safe from these things is retrofitting units of which we should do, as well as creating more housing. This is a great place to do this, as well as directly impacting the risk of flooding, this will create 1000 new homes in the affordable homes will directly move people out of situations that they don't want to be in. But the market rate homes are important, too. Each market rate home means that that person will not be bidding against someone else for their housing. Rich people don't just, you know, pop into existence when we build new housing. If you don't build new housing, they buy brownstones. sure you are aware of this. 150-year-old housing in New York can be extremely expensive, but it's not just new housing that is expensive. So, we need to build way more housing so that the rich people can compete with existing people in New York. community board here asked to reduce 300 of those That means 300 people would not have a house

access to the amenities. We are considered the

25

the working class family.

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2 CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you, Melissa.

3 Thank you for your testimony today. Next speaker.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: [inaudible

5 03:38:40] will testify next followed by Julia Amanda

6 Foster if she is available.

1

4

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

Hello, good afternoon, SUNNY NG: Council members. My name is Sunny Ng and I am a resident of a use in Southside Williamsburg by Broadway and Havemeyer. I would like to express my support for the River Ring project as originally proposed and reject the community boards recommendation to reduce the number of units. This project would not only add more affordable and market rate housing units, it will also provide much-needed publicly accessible parking space and a YMCA. park will provide a continuous waterfront to the public, filling out the current blight between Domino Park and the Northside peers. At the hearing with the community Board one's recommendation of arbitrarily cutting 33percent of the units, there is dubious claims about the lack of capacity with local infrastructure. Especially given the work the MTA is done in the last couple years to increase L train

build more affordable units. So, thank you thank you

Catherina Gioino. I'm the head of community

2

3

4

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

partnerships and advocacy of Ooni. It's a black and brown owned company operated in Brooklyn that provides free, secure bike parking and repair services to anyone who needs them. It cannot be overstated how highly needed bicycle parking in general, let alone secure is needed and absolutely really lacking the infrastructure is in meeting that demand. Ooni recognizes the need for all people, regardless of income, profession, or demographic to protect their bikes from both weather extremities and from the left which affects one in four households in New York. River Ring is leading the way in building secure, resilient infrastructure that we have seen time and time again, most recently with Ida, to his far back as Sandy and even earlier, fail the city and its residents. In similar vein, Ooni is striving to provide secure bike parking to anyone, regardless of income or profession. As a viable and sustainable transportation alternatives. And we know that this particular area of Williamsburg is in desperate need of not only secured bike parking, but bike parking in general. This area has well-connected bike lanes and high usage and it's a common occurrence to see three, four, five bikes chained up to one fence or link and

25

Ring as a constituent in Council member Levine's 2 3 district 33. I am a public servant and first 4 generation Asian immigrant whose personally benefited from living in build mixed income housing in downtown Brooklyn for the last decade. You all already 6 7 understand the middle and low income affordability crisis facing Brooklyn and indeed the rest of New 8 York City and, yet, and many rezoning applications located particularly in richer Brooklyn 10 11 neighborhoods, they have hindered our ability to take 12 even small steps toward solving the affordability 13 crisis in the way we choose to top the scale with 14 new, modern housing. Comfortably housed incumbent 15 homeowners often in the same, quote, unquote, luxury 16 towers there now opposed to admirably ask for more 17 affordability, but only in exchange for lower density 18 and at the cost of more units and, thus, also the 19 ability to house more families. These cuts are 20 consequential. There are cuts to the housing 21 stability for so many rent burden to New Yorkers, 2.2 many living in substandard housing poorly suited to 2.3 survive climate change. We have all seen the impact of Hurricane Ida: so many of our fellow New Yorkers. 24

This is much more than a negotiation with a

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 164
2	convenient evil developer bogeyman. There are
3	literally lives at stake. I'm glad the CPC
4	acknowledge that it would be a missed opportunity to
5	cut down the number of homes utilized by this
6	project, based largely on subjective aesthetic
7	concerns. Missed opportunity for bringing 1000
8	modern, energy-efficient climate resilient mixed
9	income and affordable units in the Brooklyn
10	neighborhood that is already priced out of reach for
11	so many. Furthermore, the benefits of the new only
12	connected public waterfront park space that River
13	Ring offers are obvious and it would be a sad outcome
14	if any of these unique benefits were watered down as
15	a result of the change in density to ostensibly
16	protect incumbent homeowner water views were to
17	further individual notions of contextual
18	appropriateness. Two Trees are the track record of
19	success that Domino Park, despite the local
20	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.
21	SHAURAV DATTA: I encourage you to
22	support this application and strongly force
23	maximizing the number of new homes that will create.

Thank you.

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

1

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Alexander Aiken
3 will testify next followed by Alex Viejo.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

SASHA AIKEN: Hello, there. My name is Sasha Aiken and I am a homeowner in Williamsburg. disagree with my community board and I am strongly in favor of this project with as many units as possible. I believe this because I lived in San Francisco for many years and I witnessed over the course of two decades the slow death of almost everything that made that city great. I saw what happens to neighborhoods when you say no to housing over and over again and what happens is that rich people don't just disappear. They buy the homes where low income folks are living, they kick those folks out of their homes, and they renovate the home to live in themselves. Neighborhoods can and do gentrified with no new buildings whatsoever. I've seen it happen. And it's already happening here in parts of Williamsburg. And, you know, many economists have been studying this phenomenon for the last few years and they find over and over again that new housing relieves gentrification and displacement pressures on the nearby neighborhoods and eight is important to note

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

all the businesses, all my neighbors. It would just

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2 help everybody. The affordable housing, that would

3 be able to help people, you know, live in a nice

4 neighborhood and everybody be able to enjoy every

5 thing that Williamsburg has and that it is just going

6 to become better with the waterfront and with the

7 River Ring and everything else, but I'm strongly for

8 | this project. Thank you.

1

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Cristiano Rossi will be the next speaker on the panel. Cristiano Rossi.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

CRISTIANO ROSSI: Hi. Good morning. I am Cristiano Rossi. I run a hospitality company in New York city with locations all around the city. When I decided to rent the Williamsburg location, I rented the location because I thought that would be a developed area and I fully love this project because this project redesigns the waterfront of New York and Brooklyn and becomes more like a European-style. All my residence in New York try to find a location like that and when they saw that place and saw that project, I do my best to find a location close to this project. I thought it would be a part of this project and I would do all I can for that to become

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

2 true. I really want you to approve and go to this
3 amazing project. Thank you very much.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: I see we appear to have been rejoined by Julia Foster. Julia Foster, if you can hear me--

JULIA FOSTER: Can you hear me now?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes.

JULIA FOSTER: Thank you so very Ηi. much. Wow. I've heard a lot of people for. I am for and I've heard a lot of people say they have been here a long time. I've also been used since the 50s--- 1959 and I sent on community Board one. I am a member of St. John's Lutheran Church of Williamsburg for 50 years and I just want to say, yes. Bring this project forward. We are already becoming a neighborhood of homeless shelters, something we don't need. That does not need to be Williamsburg's legacy. We don't need to be a legacy of homeless shelters. We need homes for children, parents, working hard people, young people. And, yes, we need to need low income. You know, I live in a low income development and it is kind of hard to live here, so if we can incorporate that into having it be low income and not just affordable -- because sometimes

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 170
2	we can't afford it. I know Two Trees is working with
3	the shelter industry. I'm grateful to hear that and
4	I hope it goes forward and, once again, about those
5	signatures, I have yet to see them. I don't know who
6	lives here with those signatures. Anybody can sign
7	anything online. Katie, thank you for your wonderful
8	work. Council members, thank you for hearing the
9	community out. Bring this project forward. If it is
10	anything like Domino, I have two children on the
11	spectrum, grandchildren and they loved Domino Park.
12	They love to go see the water. So, come on, Two
13	Trees. Let's do this. Thank you. And,
14	Williamsburg, we don't want to be a legacy of
15	homeless shelters. Thank you for hearing me.
16	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you for your
17	testimony today.
18	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair, that was the
19	last speaker on this panel. I don't see any members
20	with questions for this panel. We have another panel
21	coming up which I will call now with your permission.
22	That will include Maria Khimulya and Spencer
23	Heckwolf. Maria Khimulya to testify first to be
24	followed by Spencer Heckwolf.

SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

2 CHAIRPERSON MOY

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Maria, can hear us?

3 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We need you to

4 accept the unmute request to begin your testimony.

MARIA KHIMULYA: Hello. Can you hear me?

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: We can hear you. We're

ready, Maria.

1

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

MARIA KHIMULYA: Hello, Council members and the members of the community. Thank you so much for giving me the opportunity to testify. I fully support the proposal for the development and I only want to make two points. Waterfronts are the most desirable places to live and to spend time on and, as the city, we want to be able to give an opportunity to as many people to live there and to access those places and this project allows us to do exactly that. Those arguing for reducing the number of units or prioritizing minor conveniences against high-quality living conditions for thousands of people who would live in the proposed development. I do echo the concerns that the percentage of affordable units is relatively low-end should be increased if at all possible. That said, we do want to make sure that this proposal is economically viable and allows for as many units overall as possible. A lot has been

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 172
2	said in this hearing about surrounding
3	infrastructure, especially for transportation. I
4	would think that the more residents are to move into
5	this space, the more emphasis there would be a
6	building more infrastructure, including
7	transportation I said as and it just cannot work the
8	other way around. [Inaudible 03:55:01] until we have
9	people living in the community. Support for building
10	as many units as possible on the waterfront and I am
11	particularly supportive of the extremely ambitious of
12	the proposed solutions of the flood protection which
13	is a continued worry for most people that I know when
14	we think about the long-term viability of New York
15	City. This project seems to be a much-needed step
16	forward to addressing this worry and I do hope that
17	it goes forward. Thank you so much for this
18	opportunity to speak.
19	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you, Maria. Thank
20	you for your testimony.
21	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Spencer Heckwolf
22	will be the next speaker. Spencer Heckwolf.
23	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time starts now.

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Spencer, if you can

3 hear me, we need you to accept the unmute request.

4 Thank you.

1

6

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

SPENCER HECKWOLF: Yep. Just got it. So, I want to express my support for this project. think that there is obviously a lot of great things about this project: open space, a lot of housing, and obviously the YMCA facility, but I think we need to look at the broader point of New York City and to the New York region that has a massive housing deficit. I don't know if anyone saw the recent New York Times article entitled: Blue States, you are the problem. Well, one of the biggest reasons we are the problem is because we failed to build enough housing and we cannot be cutting housing or rejecting housing because we don't like that it blocks our views, we don't like that we have to share the subway, we don't like that the sidewalks are occupied by more people. If we are really going to be, you know, live up to our values, we basically just need to allow for the construction of a lot of housing. I hear people complain that a developer is going to make money from building housing. Well, yeah. Chefs make money by cooking food for people. Farmers make money by

1	SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES 174
2	growing food for people. Do we say they are evil for
3	doing that? And developers make money by building
4	shelter for people. Obviously, there needs to be
5	rules in place so that things are fair, but I think
6	it is fine that people make money providing goods and
7	services to people. That is just the general
8	economy. You know, housing is obviously one of the
9	lifelines we need in this world and we need to be
10	inviting more housing, not rejecting it. One quick
11	thing about the parking, I would hope that the
12	developer would not include any parking. It just
13	drives up the cost of housing. I hope they are not
14	including parking so that they can convert it to
15	another use later which, in case, would just allow
16	the ground floor or underground to just be used for
17	any other development.
18	SERGEANT-AT-ARMS: Time expired.
19	SPENCER HECKWOLF: thank you.
20	CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you. Thank you
21	for your testimony.
22	COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Chair Moya, that
23	was the last speaker on this panel. I see no members
24	with questions for this panel.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Oh, sorry.

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

2.2

2.3

2 COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Please.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: There being no members of the public who wish to testify on the pre-considered LU items for the River Ring proposal--

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Sorry, Chair. I'll just make a final announcement just to make sure. If there are any members of the public who wish to testify on the River Ring proposal, please now is the time to press the raise hand button. And, Chair, we will just briefly stand at ease for a bit while we confirm. Chair Moya, I see no other members of the public who wish to testify on this item.

CHAIRPERSON MOYA: Thank you. Thank you,
Arthur. There being no members of the public who
wish to testify on the pre-considered LU items for
the River Ring proposal under ULURP number C220062AMK
and N220063ZRK, the public hearing is now closed and
the items are laid over. That concludes today's
business and I want to remind the viewing public
that, for anyone wishing to submit the written
testimony for items that were heard today, please
send it by emailing us at

landusetestimony@Council.NYC.gov. That is

landusetestimony@Council.NYC.gov. And I would like

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES to thank the members of the public, my colleagues, the Subcommittee Counsel, land-use and other Council staff, and the sergeant-at-arms for participating in today's meeting. This meeting is hereby adjourned. Thank you.

World Wide Dictation certifies that the foregoing transcript is a true and accurate record of the proceedings. We further certify that there is no relation to any of the parties to this action by blood or marriage, and that there is interest in the outcome of this matter.



Date December 29, 2021